

# DIPLOMANIA

INCLUDES HYDROPHOBIA

DIPLOMANIA Supplement ---- NFFF Games Bureau Diplomacy Division ---- Issue Number 38  
Editor and Publisher: Don Miller - - - - - 24 October 1968

This issue contains Postal Diplomacy Games:

PCA(1966F) (A/W12) (pg 2)	PXC(1968L) (SO4) (pg 4)	DKJ(1967Bah) (FO4) (pg 8)
PFC(1966K) (A/W09) (pg 2)	FEC(1966Lk) (TO8) (pp 4,5)	SBB(1967Xav) (FO4) (pp 8,9)
PHC(1966AS) (S10) (pg 2)	DAA(1966Cf) (SO9) (pg 5)	PKC(1966BD) (W07) (pg 9)
PIC(1966AT) (Su09) (pg 2)	DCA(1966Hf) (FO7) (pg 5)	PLC(1967B) (A/W07) (pg 9)
PJC(1966AZ) (SO9) (pg 3)	DGA(1966Wf) (FO6) (pp 5,6)	FHD(1966Rr) (Su08) (pg 9)
PNC(1967I) (SO7) (pg 3)	DIH(1967Aag) (FO5) (pp 6,7)	POC(1967N) (FO6) (pg 10)
PPC(1967AC) (A/W05) (pp 3,4)	DDD(1966Jl) (FO7) (pp 7,8)	PRC(1967AP) (A/W05) (pg 10)
PQC(1967AL) (SO6) (pg 4)	DHG(1966ABy) (Su07) (pg 8)	PYC(1968M) (A/W03) (pg 10)

The Players -- Complete roster appeared in both DPBA #'s 28 & 29, with changes in #'s 30-37. New roster will be published in #'s 39 & 40 (no room this ish), so please be sure we have your correct address and phone number.

CoA: Janet Price, Knapp 224, Texas Tech, Lubbock, Texas, 79406 (806-742-4047).

Delete: Bischoff(DKJ).

Replacement Players -- Needed for SEE(BEL/GRE, TUN/WAR); DEE(ITA); DGA(A-H); FIE(KEITHS), DKJ(ENG); if appropriate players fail to respond by times stated, will also be needed for PFC(A-H); PHC(ENG), DIH(GER), DCA(ITA), DDD(ITA). Oh, yes, also needed (original players may still replace themselves) for PUC(FRA), FKF(RHOVANION).

The Gamesmasters -- For all games but DHG, Don Miller, 12315 Judson Rd., Wheaton, Md., 20906 (ph. 301-933-5417; call only between 8 & 10 p.m. EST weekdays except Fri.). For DHG, Terry Kuch, 4242 East-West Highway, Chevy Chase, Md., 20015 (ph. 301-OL6-5845; if calling long-distance, call person-to-person).

The "House-Rules" -- As published in DIPLOMANIA #18; read these very carefully -- they are mandatory. See also voluntary "Golden Rules" in DPBA #28 or 29.

Miscellaneous -- Only one more position left in HYPERECONOMIC (Minor Neutral -- \$1), so hurry -- first come, first served! Minor Neutrals signed up since DPBA #37 are Bob Johnson and Jim Boskey (both of you please send in your lists of choices of Minor Neutrals to be played). As soon as the last Minor Neutral is signed, AUX ARMES #1 will be out with further info. Rule revisions (rules orig. pubbed in DIPLOMANIA 19/20) will appear in DIPLOMANIA #21, still in progress but out by 2nd week in Nov., and hopefully in AUX ARMES #1. And you other Major Neutrals and Major Powers (and Minor Neutrals) who have not yet sent in your choice of countries, please do so as soon as possible. ##### Games Bureau Diplomacy zines currently having openings are: GLOCKORLA (Dave Lebling, Box 2122, Burton House, 420 Memorial Drive, Cambridge, Mass., 02139 (Regular only) and LA GUERRE (Buddy Tretick, 3702 Wendy Lane, Silver Spring, Md., 20906 (Regular and Variant: Blitzkrieg, Kriegspiel, Hyperspace III, Anonymous, Blitzkrieg II, Kriegspiel III, Third Man). ##### A new series of Regular and Variant games (with revised House-Rules) will be offered by DPBA sometime after the first of the year. Details later. ##### DPBA is published weekly (with occasional exceptions, like this issue). Players automatically receive only the issues containing games in which they are a player. To receive remaining issues, send a bunch of 6¢ stamps, specifying whether you want the issues via 1st-class mail as published or 2-at-a-time via 3rd-class mail. For non-players, subs are \$1.25 for 10 issues via 1st-class mail as issues are published, or \$1 for 10 issues via 3rd-class mail, smet 2-at-a-time. Individ. issues 15¢. Back-issue info in DPBA #37. Address code: P, Player in game within; S, Sample; T, Trade; W, Subscriber (no. indicates last issue on sub.); X, Last issue, unless.... --DLM

PCA (Variant-Regular Game #2) -- LAST FRENCH ARMY DESERTS TO HARVEST BUMPER GRAPE CROP!

AUTUMN, 1912 retreat -- ITA (Latimer): A Sil (R) Boh.

WINTER, 1912 builds/removals -- ENG (Zelazny): (B) A Lon; FRA (Huff): NMR; GM (E) A Bur.

Positions at end of W'12 -- ENG: A's Mar, Bel, Hol, Par, Ber, Sil, Lvn, Lon; F's Naf, Tun, Spa(SC), Mid, EnC, Pic, Kie, NtS, Bal (17); FRA: None; OOG; ITA: A's Pie, Mun, Boh, Vie, Tri, Gal, Rum, Con; F'a Lyo, Tyn, Ion, Bla, Smy (13); TUR (Har- rison): A's Ank, Sev, Ukr, War (4).

Deadline for SPRING, 1913 moves -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 12.

PFC (Regular Diplomacy Game #1) -- RETREATING AUSTRIAN ARMY FORGETS ITS COMPASS LESSONS AND PLUNGES HEADLONG INTO ADRIATIC!

AUTUMN, 1909 retreats -- A-H (Hoheisel?): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Tri; RUS (Schelz): A Mun (R) Kie.

WINTER, 1909 builds/removals -- ENG (Gemignani): (E) A Wal; ITA (Huff): (B) A Rom; (B) F Nap; RUS (Schelz): (B) A StP; TUR (Lebling): (B) A Smy.

Positions at end of W'09 -- A-H: A's Gal, Bud (2); ENG: F Lon (1); FRA (Latimer): None; OOG; ITA: A's Rom, Ven, Tyo, Mun, Bur, Par; F's Ion, Nap, Mid, Bre, Lvp (11); RUS: A's War, Mos, StP, Sil, Kie, Ruh; F's EnC, Bel, NtS, Nwg; A Edi (11); TUR: A's Sev, Rum, Sar, Bul, Gre, Smy; F's Tri, Aeg, Bla (9).

The Players -- Wayne Hoheisel (A-H), are you still playing? If so, let GM know NLT Nov. 12 (send SPR moves); also, anyone wanting to take over A-H do same by 12 Nov.

Propaganda -- England -- Moscow: No details need be forthcoming -- a double- crosser and backstabber needs no arrangements to do it again!

Deadline for SPRING, 1910 moves -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 12.

PHC (Regular Diplomacy Game #2) -- TURKS REGISTER GAINS AS ENGLISH GUNS ARE SILENT!

The Players -- Wayne Hoheisel (ENG), are you still playing? If so, send retreat NLT Nov. 5. Anyone wanting to take over ENG please do same NLT Nov. 5.

SPRING, 1910 moves --

ENG (Hoheisel?) -- F Nwg (U); F Fin (U); F Bot (U); A StP (U) (D (Nwy, o.b.)); A Swe (U); F NtS (U); A Edi (U); F Hol (U); A Kie (U); A Ruh (U)

FRA (Huff): A Pie-Tus; A Mar-Pie; A Bre-Par; A Mun (S) A Ber (A Mun D (Bur, o.b.)); A Ber (S) A Mun; F Ion (H); F Tun (S) F Ion; F Tyn (S) F Ion.

ITA (Lebling; by Stand-by player IAW G.O.'s) -- A Rom (S) F Nap; F Nap (S) TUR F EMe-Ion (TUR F EMe N.S.O.).

TUR (Greene): A Mos-StO; A Lvn (S) A Mos-StP; F Adr-Ion; F Ven-Adr; F Gre (S) F Adr-Ion; F Aeg (S) F Adr-Ion; A Con-Bul; A Ank-Con; A Tri-Ven; A Tyo-Mun; A Boh (S) A Tyo-Mun; A Sil (S) A Tyo-Mun; A Gal-Vie; A Pru-Ber.

Propaganda:

Constantinople -- It is going to be a long hard war which will last very, very long unless somebody wants to help the cause of Turkish liberation of Central Europe.

France -- Italy: Well, don't say I didn't warn you about helping Turkey. The least you could do is let a Christian nation take over Rome, instead of the heathen Turk.

Deadline for SUMMER, 1910 retreats (ENG: A StP; FRA A Mun) -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5 (note that F'10 moves will be due Nov. 19, but are welcome by Nov. 5).

PIC (Regular Diplomacy Game #3) -- RETREATING AUSTRIAN, GERMAN ARMIES ANNIHILATE EACH OTHER IN FIERCE BATTLE OVER WARSAW!

SUMMER, 1909 retreats -- A-H (Lebling): F Aeg (R) Ion; A Sil (R) War (A); GER (Zelazny): A Ukr (R) War (A); A Spa (R) Por.

Deadline for FALL, 1909 moves -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

PJC (Regular Diplomacy Game #4) -- FRANCE GAIN AS AUSTRIA-HUNGARY, ENGLAND ARE  
KAYOED! ITALY SILENT!

SPRING, 1909 moves --

A-H (Huff) -- A Bud (H) (A).

ENG (Schelz) -- F Den (S) GER A Kie. (F Den D (Ska, Bal, o.b.)).

FRA (Lebling; by Stand-by player IAW G.O.'s) -- A Swe (S) F NtS-Den; F NtS-Den; F Nwg-  
Bar; F Nwy-StP(NC); F Bre-Mid; A Hol-Kie; A Bel-Ruh; A Par (H); A Bur (S) A Bel-Ruh;  
A Mar-Pie; F Tyn-Nap; F Gre-Ion; A Alb (S) F Gre; F Hel (S) A Hol-Kie.

GER (Latimer): A Kie (H).

ITA (Koning): A Tyo (U); F Adr (U); F Tri (U); F Apu (U).

RUS (Munroe): A Bul (S) TUR F Aeg-Gre (TUR F Aeg N.S.O.); F Rum (S) A Bul; A Vie-Bud;  
A Gal (S) A Vie-Bud; A Mun-Kie; A Ber (S) A Mun-Kie; A Pru-Sil; A StP-Fin; A Mos-  
StP.

TUR (Bryant) -- F Aeg-Con; A Con-Bul; A Ser (S) A Con-Bul; F EMe-Aeg.

Propaganda -- Copenhagen, Denmark -- The International Council of Churches to-  
day condemned the French practice of human degradation and urged all men of good  
heart to correct this dangerous policy.

Deadline for SUMMER, 1909 retreat (ENG: F Den) -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5 (note  
that F'09 moves will be due Nov. 19, but will be most welcome by Nov. 5).

PNC (Regular Diplomacy Game #7) -- LAST TURKISH UNIT IS ELIMINATED AS AUSTRIA-  
HUNGARY CONTINUES ITS RAMPAGE!

SPRING, 1907 moves --

A-H (Rosamilia) -- A Nwy-Swe; A StP-Fin; A Sev-Arm; F Bla-Ank; A Con (S) F Bla-Ank;  
A Rum-Ser; A Gre (H); A Ven-Rom; A Tyo-Ven; A Vie-Tyo; F Apu-Nap; F Tri-Adr.

ENG (R.Johnson) -- F NtS (H) (D (Ska, Yor, o.b.)); F Nwg-Edi.

FRA (Birsan) -- F Bre-Mid; F EnC-NtS; F Lon (S) F EnC-NtS; A Lvp-Edi; A Spa (S) A  
Mar; A Mar (S) A Par-Bur; A Par-Bur.

GER (Naus) -- A Don-Swe; F Hel-Den; F Hol-NtS; A Ruh (S) A Mun-Bur; A Bel (S) A Mun-  
Bur; A Mun-Bur.

ITA (Gemignani) -- A Pie-Tus; F Tyn-Nap; F Lyo-Tyn.

TUR (Bischoff) -- F Ank-Con (A).

Propaganda --

France -- Germany: To be blunt about it, Hal, we'd better bury the hatchet in  
someone else instead of ourselves. I propose a simple about-face and attempt to  
stop the growing A-H menace. (Let's face it, he needs only three more centers.)

France -- Italy: Now listen, Margaret, if you don't stop this unsuccessful at-  
tack on my country A-H is going to win by taking your centers. So how about a little  
international cooperation to prevent the Spread of Red (pieces, that is).

Italy -- A-H: I'd get my meat-hooks off of Venice before Papa's got to slap. Your  
boarding-house reach is all out of place. You made a deal with me about Tyrolia and  
Adriatic Sea. I kept my part of the bargain, you did not keep yours. You are not a  
trustworthy ally. Move out and restore your much-tarnished reputation.

Scapa Flow -- Now the world knows what happens when you trade in the Bulldog for  
a Jackass -- let us hope the Goat proves to be of better breed.

Deadline for SUMMER, 1907 retreat (ENG: F NtS) -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5 (note  
that F'07 moves will be due Nov. 19, but would be most welcome by Nov. 5).

PPC (Regular Diplomacy Game #9) -- KINGDOM OF ITALY DISAPPEARS FROM MAP AS LAST  
REMNANTS OF ARMY ARE ROUNDED UP!

AUTUMN, 1905 retreat -- ENG (Lebling): A StP (R) Nwy.

WINTER, 1905 builds/removals -- A-H (Tretick): (B) A Tri; (B) A Vie; (B) A Bud;

ENG: (E) F Ska; FRA (B) A Par; ITA (Schelz): NMR; GM (E) A Apu.

Propaganda --

Bari (Apulia) -- The King is said to have received a letter containing the strange  
message, "Remove one unit." and to have remarked to one of his aides that it's his  
last one too. He is also reported to have said that Turkey will get what it deserves,  
soon.

PPC (Continued) --

Austria -- The regime demands the immediate surrender of the militants (Germany, Italy, France, and Turkey) so that peace may once again be restored to all of Europe. (Signed by the four admirals and the ten generals of the only peaceful nation existing.) ##### After your surrender, we promise to become hostile against hostile England.

Deadline for SPRING, 1906 moves -- Noon, Tues., 12 Nov.

PQC (Regular Diplomacy Game #10) --SPRING, 1906 moves --

A-H (Beyerlein) -- A Ser (S) ITA A Tun-Bul; A Rum-Sev; A Arm (S) A Rum-Sev; A Gal-Rum; F Alb (H).

ENG (Bischoff) -- F Iri-Lvp; F Wal (S) F Iri-Lvp (F Wal (A)).

FRA (Tretick) -- A Mar-Pie; A Ruh-Bur; A Bel (S) A Ruh-Bur; F EnC (S) A Lvp-Wal; A Lvp-Wal; F Mid-WMe; F Nat-Lvp.

GER (Scholti) -- A Hol (S) A Kie-Ruh; A Kir-Ruh; A Mun (S) A Kie-Ruh; A Lvn-StP; F Nwy (S) A Lvn-StP; A War-Mos; F Swe (H); F NtS-Lon.

ITA (Bryant) -- A Rom-Ven; F Gre (S) F Aeg; F Aeg (C) A Tun-Bul; F Ion (C) A Tun-Bul; A Tun-Bul.

RUS (Huff) -- A Fin-StP; A Mos (S) A Fin-StP; A Sev (S) A Mos (D (Ukr, o.b.)).

TUR (Latimer) -- A Ank (S) F Smy; A Bul-Con; F EMe-Aeg; F Smy (S) F EMe-Aeg.

Propaganda -- France -- Germany: If there is to be any trust, please do what is necessary!

Deadline for SUMMER, 1906 retreat (RUS: A Sev) -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5 (note that F'07 moves will be due Nov. 19, but would be welcome by Nov. 5).

PXC (Regular Diplomacy Game #17) -- RUSSIA REELS FROM BATTERING BY GERMANY, ENGLAND, SPRING, 1904 moves -- AUSTRIA; TWO RUSSIAN ARMIES ARE ANNIHILATED!

A-H (Schelz) -- A Vie-Bud.

ENG (Bischoff) -- A Fin-StP; F Nwy (S) A Fin-StP; F Bar (S) A Fin-StP; F Nwg-Nat.

FRA (Zumstein) -- A Pic (S) A Bur-Bel; A Bur-Bel; A Mar-Bur; F Lyo-Mar; F WMe (H).

GER (D.Reiter) -- A Mun-Ruh; A Swe-Lvn; A Gal-Ukr; A War (S) A Swe-Lvn; A Pru (S) A War; F Bel (H) (D (Hol, o.b.)); F Bot (C) A Swe-Lvn; F Bal (S) A Swe-Lvn.

ITA (Beyerlein) -- A Pie (U); F Tun (U).

RUS (Price) -- A Ukr-Gal; A Bud (S) A Ukr-Gal; A Mos-Ukr; A Lvn-War (A); A StP (H) (A).

TUR (Hueston) -- A Tri-Vie; A Alb-Ser; A Smy-Con; F Con-Aeg; F EMe-Ion; F Tyn (S) F Rom-Tus; F Rom-Tus.

Propaganda -- Vienna -- All contributions or help in any manner would be greatly appreciated.

SUMMER, 1904 retreat -- GER (D.Reiter): F Bel (R) Hol.

GM Note -- We goofed under SPR moves -- note that GER F Bel could also have gone to either NtS or EnC. But no matter, as GER had already ordered it to Hol. Thanks for the anticipated retreat, Dick -- you saved three weeks in this game!

Deadline for FALL, 1904 moves -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 12.

FEC (Mordor Versus the World I, #3) -- GONDOR, ARNOR CLASH IN FANGORN! RHOVANION TAKES GLADDEN! MORDOR DRIVEN FROM DEAD MARSHES!TUILLE, 300% moves --

ARNOR (Boskoy) -- SA Bra-Tha; SA Min (S) SA Bra-Tha; SA DoG-Wil; DA NoW (S) SA DoG-Wil;

SA Mis-Mor; SA Gla (S) SA Mis-Mor (SA Gla D (Car, Mir, DoG, o.b.)); SA Ere (S) SA

Mis-Mor; SA Iml-Mis; SA Amo-Iml; SA ThS-Amo; SA Fan (U) (D (Cel, Dun, Wol, EEm, o.b.)).

GONDOR (Huff) -- SA Isg (S) SA WEM-Fan; SA WEM-Fan; SA Edo (S) SA Isg; SA Esf-WEM; SA SoG-Sha; DA Hen (S) SA Rau-Dea; SA Rau-Dea; SA Ano (S) DA Hen; SA MiT (S) DA Hen;

SA Por (S) DA Hen; SA Bar-Udu; SA MiMo (S) SA Bar-Udu.

MORDOR (Gemignani) -- DA Dag (H); DA Dea (H) (D (Bro, o.b.)); TA Udu (H).

FEC (Continued) --

RHOVANION (Linden) -- DA Cel-Lor.

ROHAN (Linden) -- DA Lor-Gla; SA Isen-Anf (no SA Isen); SA Ene (U).

Deadline for LAIRE, 3008 retreats (ARN: SA Gla, SA Fan; MOR: DA Dea) -- Noon,  
Tues., Nov. 5 (note that QUELLE moves will be due Nov. 19, but are welcome by Nov. 5.).

DAA (Game of Anonymity #1) -- WAR GOES ON AS RUSSIAN FORCES PULL BACK TO DEFEND  
 THEIR HOMETLAND AGAINST THE ITALIAN MARAUDERS!

SPRING, 1909 moves --

ENG -- F Ska-Den; F NtS (S) F Ska-Den; F Nwy (H); F Nwg (S) F Nwy.

FRA -- F EMe (S) ITA F Aeg-Smy; F Ion-Adr; F Tun-WMe; F Lyo-WMe; A Spa (H); A Bur  
(H); A Kie (H); F Bre-Pic; A Ruh (S) A Kie.ITA -- F Aeg-Smy; F Bul(SC)-Con; A Bud-Rum; A War-Mos; A Mun-Boh; A Ber-Mun; A Rom-  
Ven; F Apu (S) A Rom-Ven; F Tus-Rom; F Tyn (H).RUS -- A Sil-War; A Ukr (S) A Sil-War; A Fin-StP; F Bar (S) A Fin-StP; A Swe-Nwy;  
A Rum (S) A Con-Bul; A Con-Bul; A Smy-Con (D (Ank, Arm, Syr, o.b.)).

TUR -- F Tri-Ven; F Bla-Bul(EC).

Propaganda --

England -- France: Can I really trust you?Paris -- We await Italy's offer.Deadline for SUMMER, 1909 retreat (RUS: A Smy) & Prop. -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

DCA (Game of Anonymity #2) -- TURMOIL IN ITALY AS KING DISAPPEARS ON FISHING TRIP!  
 CABINET MEETS TO DISCUSS POSSIBLE REPLACEMENT!

The Players -- The ITALIAN player is requested to let the GM know by Nov. 5 if  
 he plans to continue; interested replacements also let GM know by Nov. 5.

FALL, 1907 moves --

A-H -- A Gal-Rum; A Bud (S) A Gal-Rum; A Ser (S) A Gal-Rum; A Tri (S) A Ser.

ENG -- F Bar (S) F StP(NG); F StP(NG) (H); F Nwy-NtS; F Bal (C) A Den-Lvn; F Mid-Por;  
A Den-Lvn; A Pru (S) A Den-Lvn.FRA -- A Spa-Por; F Tyn (S) F Ion-Nap; F Ion-Nap; A Pie (S) A Mun-Tyo; A Mun-Tyo; A  
Bre-Pic; A Bur-Mun; A Ruh (H); A Sil (S) ENG A Pru-War (ENG A Pru N.S.O.).

ITA -- A Ven (U); A Rom (U); A Vie (U); F Por (U).

RUS -- A Ukr-War; A Mos (S) A Ukr-War; A Run-Gal; A Lvn (S) A Ukr-War (A Lvn (A)). \*

TUR -- A Con-Bul; F Bul(SC)-Aeg; A Gre (S) A Con-Bul; F Aeg-EMe.

Supply Centers held at end of AUT '07 (retreat does not affect count) --

A-H -- ~~Bel~~, Ser, Tri, ~~Vie~~, Bud, Rum (stands pat). (4)

ENG -- Den, Edi, Hol, Lvp, Lon, Nwy, StP (stands pat). (7)

FRA -- Bel, Ber, Bre, Kie, Mar, Mun, Par, Spa, Tun, Nap (may build one unit). (10)

ITA -- ~~Nap~~, Por, Rom, Ven, Vie (stands pat). (4)RUS -- Mos, ~~Rum~~, Sev, Swe, War (may build one; only 3 units on board). (4)TUR -- Ank, ~~Bul~~, Con, Gre, Smy, Bul (may build one; only 4 on board). (5)Deadline for AUT '07 retreat (RUS: A Rum) and W'07 builds & Prop -- Noon, Tues. 5 Nov.

\*RUSSIAN A Rum was dislodged, and may retreat to Sev, Ukr, or off board.

DGA (Game of Anonymity #3) -- ENGLAND KAYOED AND RUSSIA, TURKEY HIT HARD AS VIOLENCE  
 INCREASES IN EUROPEAN CONFLICT!

The Players -- Replacement still needed to oversee lonely AUSTRO-HUNGARIAN fleet  
 languishing in Bulgaria; if interested, contact GM NLT Nov. 5.

FALL, 1906 moves --

A-H -- F Bul(SC) (U).

ENG -- F Cly (S) F Lvp-Nat; F Lvp-Nat.

FRA -- A Tyo (S) ITA A Ven-Tri (A Tyo D (Pie, Ven, o.b.)); A Yor-Edi; A Bur (S) GER  
A Ruh-Mun; F Wal-Lvp; F Iri (S) F Wal-Lvp; F Nat (S) F Wal-Lvp (F Nat D (Nwg, Mid, ob)).GER -- A Kie-Lvn; F Bal (C) A Kie-Lvn; F Den-Swe; A Pru-War; A Sil (S) A Pru-War; A  
Ruh-Mun.ITA -- A Ven-Tri; F Adr (S) A Ven-Tri; A Alb (S) A Ser; A Ser (S) A-H F Bul(SC); A Gre  
(S) A-H F Bul(SC); F EMe-Aeg.

DCA (Continued) --

RUS -- A Nwy (S) A Swe; A Swe (S) A Nwy; F Bot (H); A Sev (H); F Bla-Ank; A Con (S)  
A-H F Bul(SC); A Rum-Ser; A Bud (S) A Rum-Ser; A Boh-Tyo; A Vie (S) A Boh-Tyo.

TUR -- A Arm-Sev; F Smy (H).

Supply Centers held at end of AUT '06 (retreats may affect count) --

A-H -- Bul (stands pat). (1)

ENG -- ~~Adi, Lvp~~ (remove two units). (0)

FRA -- Bre, Lon, Mar, Par, Por, Spa, Edi, Lvp (may build two units, unless A  
Tyo (R) Ven, in which case may build three). (8 or 9)

GER -- Bel, Ber, Den, Hol, Kie, Mun, War (may build one unit). (7)

ITA -- Gre, Nap, Rom, Tri, Tun, (Ven), Ser (may build one unit, unless FRA A  
Tyo (R) Ven, in which event stands pat; so submit one build, in case). (7 or 6)

RUS -- Bud, Mos, Nwy, Rum, StP, ~~Ser~~, Sev, ~~Ser~~, Swe, Vie, ~~War~~, Ank, Con (stands  
pat; only 10 units on board). (10)

TUR -- ~~Ank, Ser, Smy~~ (remove one unit). (1)

Propaganda --

France -- Italy: Okay on support to A Venice. If I'm dislodged, you'll have to  
move F Adriatic to Venice, but Munich and Trieste can support me back to Tyrolia.

Rome -- Paris: It is felt here that the probability of your position in Tyrolia  
being attacked this fall is very low. Why would it be? And by whom? So we have  
followed our original plan. Next year there will be support.

Russia -- Germany: Dear Germany: the only reward you'll get from France and Italy  
is a knife in the back. Consider carefully; that if you drive into Russia both your  
rear and South flanks are open. Also consider the French Army Burgundy. That's  
probably only the beginning of your reward.

Deadline for AUT'06 retreats (FRA: A Tyo, F NAT) and W'06 builds/removals &  
Prop. -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

DIH (Economic Diplomacy II) -- GERMANY, TURKEY CLOBBERED AS THEIR LEADERS DESERT  
THEIR TROOPS! FRANCE, TOO, IS SILENT....

The Players -- Wayne Hoheisel (GER), send appropriate orders by Nov. 5 if you  
are still playing; replacement needed, in case (send orders called for by Nov. 5).

FALL, 1905 moves --

A-H (Alderson) -- A Pru-Lvn (1); A Boh (S) RUS A Sil-Mun (2); A Tyo (S) RUS A Sil-  
Mun (1); A Rum-Sev (2); A Ser-Gre (2); A Bul-Con (2); 222\$ to RUS F.T. (222).

ENG (Lebling) -- F Iri-Wal (1); F NtS-EnC (2); F Den-Kie (2); A Hol (S) F Den-Kie (2).

FRA (Pournelle) -- F Mid (U) (0); A Bur (U) (0); A Par (U) (0); A Bre (U) (0); F EnC  
(U) (2); F Lvp (U) (0); A Edi (U) (0); A Bel (U) (0).

GER (Hoheisel?) -- A Ruh (U) (0); A Kie (U) (D (Ber, o.b.)) (2); A Mun (U) (D (Ber,  
o.b.)) (2); F Swe (U) (0); F Bal (U) (0); A Fin (U) (0).

ITA (Brannan) -- F Ion-Gre (2); A Arm-Sev (2); A Syr-Smy (2); F EMe (S) A Syr-Smy  
(2); 12\$ to FRA F.T. (12).

RUS (Kanner) -- A Nwy (H) (0); A StP (S) A Nwy (1); A War-Pru (1); A Sil-Mun (2);  
A Ukr-Sev (2); 90\$ to A-H in F.T. (90).

TUR (Huff) -- F Smy (U) (D (Aeg, o.b.)) (2); F Con (U) (2); F Bla (U) (0); A Ank (U) (0).

Supply Centers held at end of AUTUMN, 1905 (retreats do not affect count) --

A-H -- Bud(20), Bul(17), Gre(18), Rum(18), Ser(20), Tri(20), Vie(22).

ENG -- Edi(20), Hol(17), Lon(22), Den(20), Kie(15).

FRA -- Bel(20), Bre(20), Lvp(20), Mar(20), Par(22), Por(20), Spa(20).

GER -- Ber(22), Swe(19), ~~Kie, Mun, War~~.

ITA -- Rom(22), Nap(20), Ven(20), Tun(20), Smy(14).

RUS -- Mos(20), StP(22), Sev(18), War(20), Mun(18), Nwy(20).

TUR -- Ank(20), Con(18), ~~Ser~~.

GM Note -- As announced in DPBA #30, the Foreign Trade Payoff will be changed,  
effective with the SPRING, 1906 season, so that the maximum bonus to be paid by the  
GM to any single player for any single transaction in any single season is 10\$. In  
other words, the players may still send each other as much Foreign Trade as they wish,  
but the GM will pay the 1/3 bonus only on the first 30\$ sent. We know it is a bit  
late for this rule, but it may still help the game a bit. Economic III will have this  
limitation in the rules from the start.

DIH (Continued) --  
Financial Situation at end of AUTUMN, 1905 --

Country	A-H	ENG	FRA	GER	ITA	RUS	TUR
On hand at start of F'05	£222 cr	£13 po	£92 fr	£20 mk	£105 li	£91 ro	-
Unopposed move costs	-2	-1	-	-	-	-1	-
Unused support costs	-1	-	-	-	-	-1	-
Battle costs	-7	-6	-2	-4	-8	-4	-4
Foreign Trade out	-222	-	-	-	-12	-90	-
Foreign Trade in	£90	-	£12	-	-	£222	-
Foreign Trade Bonus (1/3)	£30	-	£4	-	-	£74	-
O.H. at end of F'05	£110 cr	£6 po	£106 fr	£16 mk	£85 li	£291 ro	-£1
AUTUMN retreats	-	-	-	(*)	-	-	(*)
Payoffs: Own Capital	£22	£22	£22	£22	£22	£22	£18
Other Supply Centers	£113	£72	£120	£19	£94	£96	£20
Maintenance Costs:							
On home territory	-34	-34	-85	(*)	-17	-34	(*)
On foreign territory	-72	-36	-54	-36	-54	-54	-
On hand at end of AUT'05	£139 cr	£30 po	£109 fr	(*)	£130 li	£321 ro	(*)

\*AUTUMN retreat cost for GER is -3 if one unit retreats to Ber and the other to off board, or -4 if both units retreat to off board. In the former case, Maintenance costs (on home territory) will be -51; in the latter, Maintenance cost will be -34. Again, in the former case, GERMAN balance at end of AUT '05 will be -33 mks, which means he would have to sell three units (at 15\$ ea.) back to the bank to make up the deficit; in the latter case (both units off board), GERMAN balance at end of AUT '05 will be -17 mks, in which event he would have to sell two units back to the bank.

●AUTUMN retreat cost for TUR is -1 if F Smy (R) Aeg, -2 if F Smy (E) in lieu of retreat. In the former case, maintenance cost (on home territory) will be -68; in the latter, maintenance cost will be -51. Again, in the former case, TURKISH balance at end of AUT'05 would be -35, in which event he would have to sell three units back to bank to make up deficit; in the latter case (retreat o.b.), TUR balance at end of AUT '05 would be -19, meaning he would have to sell two units back to the bank.

Deadline for AUT'05 retreats (GER: A Kie, A Mun; TUR: F Smy) and W'05 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

DDD (Twin-Earths Diplomacy I) -- RUSSIA, ITALY LOSE HEAVILY AS THEIR LEADERS ABSENT THEMSELVES FROM THE FRONT!

The Players -- Wayne Hoheisel (ITA), are you still playing? If so, send A/W orders NLT Nov. 5; replacement needed, in case -- if interested, send A/W O's NLT 5 Nov.

FALL, 1907 moves --

- ENG (Schelz) -- F NwyII (H); F SkaI-NwyI; F NwgI-NAtI; F LvpII-IriII; F EdiII-NtSII (no F EdiII); F NtSI-LonI; F EnCII-LonII; F BreII-EnCII; F HolII-BelII (no F HolII); A BelI (S) F HolII-BelII; F BerII-BerI; F DenII (S) F KieII; F KieII (S) A RuhI-KieI; A RuhI-KieI; A EdiII (U); F BelII (U).
- FRA (Gemignani) -- A ParI-BreI; A GasI-BurI; A MunI (S) GER A KieI; A ParII-BreII; A PicII (S) A ParII-BreII; F EnCI-NtSI; F TusII-VenII (impossible); F LyoII-PieII; A MarI (U).
- GER (Linden) -- A KieI (U); A BerI (U); A MunII (U).
- ITA (Hoheisel?) -- F LyoI (U); F WMe I (U); F TynI (U); A PieI (U); A VenI (U); F PicI (U); F WalII (U); F TynII (U); A PieII (U); A NapII (U).
- RUS (Boskey) -- A MosI (U); A UkrI (U); A GalI (U); A WarI (U); A VieI (U); F BalI (U); A RumI (U) (A); F SweI (U); A UkrII (U); A MosII (U); A GalII (U); A SweII (U).
- TUR (Huff) -- A SevI-RumI; F BlaI (S) A SevI-RumI; A BudI (S) A TriI-VieI (A TriI not so ordered); A RumII (S) A SevI-RumI; A BulI-SerI; A ConI-BulI; A SevII (H); F ArmII (S) A SevII; F BlaII (S) A RumII; A BudII (S) A BudI; A VieII (S) A TriI-VieI (A TriI n.s.o.); A TriII-TriI; F AdrI-AdrII; F Albi (S) A TriII-TriI; F IonII-AegII; A BulII (S) A ConI-BulI; A TraI (U); F AegI (U).

Propaganda -- LondonI & II -- Paris: I have carried out my promise, why not you?

DDD (Continued) --

Supply Centers held at end of FALL, 1907 (no AUT retreats) --

- ENG -- DenI, EdiI, HolI, ~~VieI~~, LvpI, LonI, BelII, BerII, ~~BreII~~, DenII, EdiII, HolII, LonII, StPII, KieII, Bell, NwyI, NwyII (may build two units). (16)
- FRA -- MarI, MunI, ParI, PorI, SpaI, MarII, ParII, PorII, SpaII, BreII, Brel (may build two units). (11)
- GER -- BerI, ~~VieI~~, MunII, KieI (stands pat). (3)
- ITA -- ~~Bell~~, ~~Brel~~, NapI, RomI, TunI, VenI, LvpII, NapII, RomII, TunII, VenII (remove one unit, as only has 10 units on board). (9)
- RUS -- ~~Bell~~, MosI, ~~VieI~~, StPI, SweI, VieI, WarI, MosII, ~~VieII~~, ~~SweII~~, SweII, WarII (remove four units). (8)
- TUR -- AnkI, ConI, GreI, BulI, SerI, SevI, SmyI, RumI, TriI, AnkII, BudII, BulII, ConII, GreII, RumII, SerII, SmyII, TriII, VieII, BudI, SevII (may build three units, as has only 18 units on board). (21)
- Deadline for W'07 builds/removals -- Moon, Tues., Nov. 5.

-----

DHG (Microdiplomacy I) -- RETREATING RUSSIAN FLEET VISITS SWEDEN FOR REST AND RECREATION BEFORE RETURNING TO BATTLE!

SUMMER, 1907 retreat -- RUS (Prosnitz): F Den (R) Swe.

Deadline for FALL, 1907 moves (to GGM Kuch) -- Fri., Nov. 8.

-----

DKJ (Lebling Variant) -- RUSSIA EXPANDS WHILE REMAINING NATIONS LICK THEIR WOUNDS! CHAOS REIGNS IN ENGLAND!

The Players -- Replacement needed for ENGLAND; if interested, send W build to GM MLT Nov. 5.

FALL, 1904 moves --

A-H (Linden) -- A Vie (H).

ENG (Open) -- F Lvp (U).

FRA (Brooks) -- F Mid-Spa(SC); F EnC (C) A Bre-Lon; A Bre-Lon; F Lon-Nts; A Bur-Mar.

GER (Gemignani) -- A Bel-Ruh; A Mun (S) F Kie-Ber; F Kie-Ber.

ITA (Huff) -- A Gre (S) RUS A Ser-Bul (RUS A Ser N.S.O.); F Alb (S) A Gre; F Ven-Tri; A Pie-Mar; F Tyn-Lyo; F Ion-Aeg.

RUS (Latimer) -- A StP-Nwy (NEUT A Nwy (A)); A Fin (S) A StP-Nwy; F Swe-Den; A Pru-Ber; A Sil (S) A Pru-Ber; A Bud (S) A Ser-Rum; A Rum-Sev; F Ber-Bal; A Ser-Rum.

TUR (Lebling) -- F Bla-Sev; F Aeg-Gre; A Bul (S) F Aeg-Gre; F Con (S) A Bul.

Supply Centers held at end of F'04 (no AUTUMN retreats) --

A-H -- ~~Bell~~, Vie (stands pat). (1)

ENG -- Edi, Lvp (may build one unit; has only 1 unit on board). (2)

FRA -- Bre, Lon, Mar, Par, Por, Spa (may build one; has only 5 on board). (6)

GER -- Bel, ~~Vie~~, Kie, Mun (stands pat; only 3 units on board). (3)

ITA -- Nap, Rom, ~~Ser~~, Tri, Tun, Ven, Gre (stands pat). (6)

RUS -- Ber, ~~Bell~~, Mos, Rum, StP, Sev, Swe, ~~Vie~~, War, Bud, Den, Ser, Nwy (2). (11)

TUR -- Ank, Con, ~~Bre~~, Smy, Bul (stands pat). (4)

NEUTRAL -- ~~Vie~~, Hol. (1)

Propaganda -- NSG -- Revenge is so sweet, and it's mine!

France -- Italy: Don't look now, Wrong-way Corrigan, but Russia and Turkey are the other way. Germany and I will have our hands full with Russia, so why not live and let live?

Deadline for W'04 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

-----

SBB (Hyperspace II, #1) -- ENGLAND, AUSTRIA ALMOST NECK-AND-NECK AS TURKEY SLOWLY DISAPPEARS!

FALL, 1904 moves --

A-H (Prosnitz) -- A Tyo-Vie; A Tri (S) A Tyo-Vie; A Gal-Rum; A Bud-Ser; A Gre (S)

ITA F Nap (impossible in normal space; if intended to be thru hs, note that "thru hs" was not part of order); A Bul (H); A Con (S) thru hs RUS A Mos-Sev; (L) Bud & Vie; (S) Edi & Vie.



## SBB (Continued) --

ENG (Tretick) -- A Lvp-Cly; F Mar-Lyo; F WMe-Nwg via hs; F Tun-Tyn; A Ven-Rom; A Ber-Mun; F Ska-Nwy; (L) Cly-Con; (S) Bul & Rum.  
 FRA (Gemignani) -- A Ber-Mun (no A Ber); A Pie-Tyo; A Bur (S) ENG A Ber-Mun; (L) Bur & Con; (S) Bul & Gre.  
 GER (Bischoff) -- A Hol-Lvn thru hs; A Kie-Ruh; A Bel-Via thru hs; (L) Ruh & Sev; (S) Bud & Con.  
 ITA (Schelz) -- F Ion-Tun; F Adr-Ven; F Nap (H); (L) Tun & Hyperspace; (S) Tun & Tyn.  
 RUS (Birsan) -- A Mos-Sev; A War-Sil; A Ank-Smy; (L) Mos & War; (S) Bel & Vie.  
 TUR (Lebling) -- A Sev-Rum; F Aeg-Con; (L) Aeg & Smy; (S) Bul & Con.

Supply Centers held at end of F'04 (no AUTUMN retreats) --

A-H -- Bud, Bul, Gre, Rum, Ser, Vie, Tri, Con (may build one unit). (8)  
 ENG -- Bre, ~~Den~~, Edi, Lvp, Lon, Por, Rom, Spa, Mun, Nwy (stands pat). (9)  
 FRA -- Ber, Mar, Par (may build one unit; has only two on board). (3)  
 GER -- Bel, Hol, Kie (stands pat). (3)  
 ITA -- Nap, Tun, Ven (stands pat). (3)  
 RUS -- Ank, Mos, ~~War~~, StP, ~~Sev~~, War, Smy, Den (may build two units; has only four units on board). (6)  
 TUR -- ~~Den~~, ~~Sev~~, Sev (remove one unit). (1)

## Propaganda --

Eng -- The English molecule has a valence of 104. The Austrian mole.... has no valence at all.

Eng -- Aus: Please correct the figures you previously published.

Russia -- Would you believe that my country may be all back together after using 4 links? Snyhow, why does a molecule grow? Because others don't react.

NSG -- I couldn't go through with it; it would have been the end of me -- self-destruction, suicide.... Sorry.

Hyperspace Linkages in effect at end of F'04 -- 2/12, 20/39, 20/42, 21/34, 21/58, 24/30, 26/28, 26/30, 26/XX, 29a,b/39, 30/71, 32/58, 37/43, 37/50, 38/47, 38/53, 39/66, 39/59a,b, 48a,b/51, 53/58, 58/66, 59a,b/64, 59a/66, 60/74, 62/63, 65/73. (Corrected.)

Separations in effect at end of F'04 -- 7/46, 14/26; 18/59b, 19/53, 19/57, 19/59a, 28/29a,b, 30/32, 34/35, 38/39, 42/43, 43/44, 45/46, 47/48a,b, 48a,b/49, 49/50, 51/52, 58/59a,b, 59a,b/60, 59a,b/62, 59a,b/63, 63/65, 65/66, 66/71. (Corrected.)

Deadline for W'04 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

PKC (Regular Diplomacy Game #5) -- LATE WORD IS RECEIVED OF LOSS OF ENTIRE RUSSIAN SOUTHERN FLEET IN BLACK SEA STORM!

SPECIAL WINTER, 1907 removal -- RUS (Schelz): (E) F Bla.

Deadline for SPRING, 1908 moves (Lebling?) -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

PLC (Regular Diplomacy Game #6) -- ITALIAN, RUSSIAN TROOPS DESERT RATHER THAN CONTINUE TO FIGHT! RUSSIA OUT OF WAR!

AUTUMN, 1907 retreats -- ITA (Huff): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Spa; RUS (R. Johnson): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Mos; TUR (Naus): A Tri (R) Bud.

WINTER, 1907 builds -- ENG (Carey): (B) F Edi; FRA (Leitch): (B) F Bre; TUR: (B) F Smy; GER (Tretick): (B) F Kie.

Positions at end of W'07 -- A-H (Eryant): A's Ser, Gre (2); ENG: F's Nwy, Nwg, Edi, Lon (4); FRA: A's Spa, Par; F Bre (3); GER: A's Mar, Tyo, Mun, Bel, War, Sev, Mos; F's Kie, NtS, Den, StP(NC), EnC (12); ITA: A's Ven, Tri, Boh; F's Tyn, Adr, Lyo (6); RUS: None; OOG; TUR: A's Bul, Arm, Vie, Bud; F's Rum, Smy, Aeg (7).

Deadline for SPRING, 1908 moves -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 12.

FHD (Indianomacy II, #1) -- APACHE WAR-PARTY LOST IN DEATH VALLEY!

SUMMER, 1908 retreat -- APACHE (Lebling): NMR; GM (E) Retreating W Navaho(87).  
Deadline for FALL, 1908 moves -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

POC (Regular Diplomacy Game #8) -- ITALY CATCHES UP WITH RUSSIA! FRENCH OFFICERS  
STAND BY WHILE THEIR MEN ARE SLAUGHTERED!

FALL, 1906 moves --

ENG (Latimer) -- F NtS (C) A Lon-Bel; F Nwg (S) F NtS; A Lon-Bel.  
 FRA (Naus) -- F Spa(SC) (U) (D (Mid, o.b.)); A Gas (U); A Bur (U); A Par (U).  
 GER (Huff) -- F Den (S) ENG F NtS-Ska (ENG F NtS N.S.O.) (F Den D (Hel, o.b.)); A  
 Ruh (S) A Mun; A Mun (S) A Ber; A Kie (S) A Ber; A Ber (S) A Mun.  
 ITA (Prosnitz) -- F Por-Spa(SC); F Lyo (S) F Por-Spa(SC); A Mar-Gas; A Pie-Ven; A  
 Tyo-Tri; A Vie-Bud; F Smy-Con; F Ion-Gre; F Tun-Ion; F Tyn-EMe.  
 RUS (Lebling) -- A Bud (H); A Bul(H); F Bla (H); F Ank (H); F Nwy (H); A StP(S) F Nwy;  
 F Bot-Bal; F Ska-Den; F Swe (S) F Ska-Den; A Sil-Ber; A Pru (S) A Sil-Ber; A Boh-Mun.

Supply Centers held at end of AUT'06 (retreats do not affect count) --

ENG -- Edi, Lvp, Lon, Bel (may build one unit). (4)  
 FRA -- ~~Bel~~, Hol, Par, ~~Spa~~ (remove two units). (2)  
 GER -- Ber, ~~Den~~, Hol, Kie, Mun (remove one unit). (4)  
 ITA -- Gre, Mar, Nap, Por, Rom, Smy, Tun, Tri, Ven, Vie, Con, Spa (build 2). (12)  
 RUS -- Ank, Bud, Bul, ~~Boh~~, Mos, Nwy, Rum, StP, Ser; Sev, Swe, War, Den (pat). (12)

Deadline for AUT'06 retreats (FRA: F Spa(SC); GER: F Den) and W'06 builds/  
removals -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 5.

PRC (Regular Diplomacy Game #11) -- ARMORIES, SHIPYARDS BUSY AS EUROPE GIRDS FOR  
SIXTH YEAR OF WAR!

AUTUMN, 1905 retreat -- ITA (Tretick): F Ion (R) Tun.

WINTER, 1905 builds/removals -- A-H (Stokely): (E) A Alb; FRA (Scholti): (B) F  
 Bre; GER (Beyerlein): NMR; GM (E) F Hel; ITA: (B) A Ven; RUS (Von Metzke): (B) F  
 StP(NG); TUR (Schelz): (B) A Smy.

Positions held at end of W'05 -- A-H: A's War, Boh (2); ENG (Birsan): F's NtS,  
 Lon (2); FRA: A's Bur, Pie, Kie, Hol; F's Spa(SC), Lyo, Bre, EnC, Wal (9); GER: A  
 Den (1); ITA: A's Ven, Tyo, Mun; F's WMe, Tun, Nap (6); RUS: A's Rum, Bud, Vie,  
 Pru, Lvn; F's StP(NG), Ska, Swe (8); TUR: A's Ser, Gre, Smy; F's Aeg, Ion, Bul(SC) (6).

Propaganda -- France -- "Just don't get too meddlesome!"  
 Deadline for SPRING, 1906 moves -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 12.

PYC (Regular Diplomacy Game #18) -- ENGLISH FARMERS FLOCK TO JOIN NEW ARMIES RAISED  
TO CARRY ON WAR!

AUTUMN, 1903 retreats -- A-H (Scholti): (E) Retreating F Tri; FRA (Naus): (E)  
 Retreating A Bel; ITA (Reiter): A Mun (R) Ruhr.

WINTER, 1903 builds/removals -- ENG (Rosamilia): (B) A Edi; (B) A Lon; (B) F  
 Lvp; ITA: (E) F Adr; RUS (R.Johnson): (B) A Sev.

Positions at end of W'03 -- A-H: A Vie (1); ENG: A's Kie, Lon, Edi; F's Lvp,  
 Mid, Tun, EnC, Bel, NtS (9); FRA: A's Par, Pic, Por; F's Spa(SC), Bre (5); ITA:  
 A's Tyo, Tri, Ruh; F Ion (4); RUS: A's Rum, Sev, Bud, Gal, Sil, Mun, Boh; F's Ber,  
 Bla (9); TUR (Levinson): A's Bul, Ser, Gre; F's EMe, Smy, Aeg (6).

Deadline for SPRING, 1904 moves -- Noon, Tues., Nov. 12.

DIPLOMANIA

% D. Miller  
 12315 Judson Rd.  
 Wheaton, Md., 20906



TO: Larry Peery (T)  
 4567 Virginia Ave,  
 San Diego, Cal.F. 92115

PRINTED MATTER ONLY  
 3rd-Class Mail  
 Return Postage Guaranteed

FIRST CLASS MAIL